IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 66,005

ROY ALLEN STEWART,

Appellant,

-vs-

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

FILED
SID J. WHITE
JAN 29 1965

CLERK SUPREME COURT

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

BENNETT H. BRUMMER
Public Defender
Eleventh Judicial Circuit
of Florida
1351 N.W. 12th Street
Miami, Florida 33125

ROBIN H. GREENE Assistant Public Defender

Counsel for Appellant

TABLE	OF	CONTENTS
-------	----	----------

INTRODUCTION
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
STATEMENT OF THE FACTS4
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT23
ARGUMENT24

INTRODUCTION

This is an appeal from an order entered after an evidentiary hearing by the Circuit Court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit of Dade County, Florida, denying a motion for post-conviction relief from a sentence of death.

Appellant Roy Allen Stewart was the defendant in the trial court, and the appellee, the State of Florida, was the prosecution. In this brief, the parties are referred to as they stood below. The symbol "R." refers to the record on appeal, and the symbol "T." refers to the separately bound transcripts of the evidentiary hearing in this case. The symbols "SR." and "ST." refer to the supplemental record; the record on appeal and separately bound transcripts of the defendant's trial by jury in Case No. 79-6621. The symbol "A" refers to the appendix attached to this brief.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

After a trial by jury commencing June 25, 1979, Roy Allen Stewart was convicted of first-degree murder, robbery with a weapon, sexual battery, and burglary of a conveyance with a weapon. (SR. 1-3A, 10-38, 1080-5). Advisory sentencing proceedings were held on July 5, 1979, and consistent with the jury's recommendation, Circuit Court Judge Lenore C. Nesbitt imposed the death penalty; consecutive maximum sentences were imposed on the other convictions. (SR. 1112, 1114, 1182-8; ST. 2450-3, 2458-9).

This Court affirmed the conviction and sentence in Stewart v.

State, 420 So.2d 862 (Fla. 1982). Rehearing was denied on November 9, 1982. The Supreme Court of the United States denied a petition for writ of certiorari on April 18, 1983. Stewart v.

Florida, ___ U.S. ___ (1983).

On March 16, 1984, the defendant filed a motion for post-conviction relief, claiming that he was denied his right to effective assistance of counsel at the capital sentencing phase of his trial, in violation of the Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States. (R. 707-14). The motion was supported by affidavits of trial counsel (R. 516-17, 715), sworn statements of character witnesses (R. 519-699), and reports of a psychologist. (R. 700-6). The defendant also filed a motion for stay of execution of a death warrant signed on March 6, 1984. (R. 716). The trial judge, the Honorable Michael H. Salmon, ordered an evidentiary hearing on March 19, 1984 (T. 1-11) and granted a stay of execution on March 20, 1984.

(R.718).

The evidentiary hearing was had on May 23 and 24, 1984. (R. 510-13). The trial court heard arguments of counsel on June 7, 1984. (R. 514). On July 13, 1984 and August 8, 1984, defendant Stewart filed memoranda of law in support of his motion. (R. 732-880). Corrected pages were filed on September 7, 1984. (R. 882-90). The trial court denied the motion for post-conviction relief by an order filed on September 11, 1984. (R. 891-898). The trial court found that counsel's performance was deficient but that the deficient performance did not prejudice the defendant. (R. 897-8).

Notice of appeal was timely filed on October 9, 1984. (R. 899). This appeal follows.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

At the evidentiary hearing on Roy Allen Stewart's motion for post-conviction relief from his sentence of death, the circumstances surrounding counsel's performance were reconstructed.

Lead counsel Stanley M. Goldstein was appointed to represent Stewart on April 27, 1979. (ST. 7). At the time he accepted the appointment, he had been a member of the Florida Bar for eleven years, primarily as an assistant state attorney. (T. 140-1). Mr. Goldstein had never prosecuted a capital case, but he had represented three to five people charged with murder for whom death was a possible punishment. (T. 142). This case is the only one in which he represented a person at penalty phase. (T. 143).

Mr. Goldstein never made an independent pretrial preparation for the sentencing phase in any capital case; apparently, the other cases occurred before the institution of the bifurcated process. (T. 143-4). Mr. Goldstein was not sure when capital trial were first bifurcated, but he recalled reading articles on the defense of capital cases and attending several criminal law seminars, none of which concerned the death penalty. (T. 144-5).

Any attempts at plea-bargaining were foreclosed by the certainty that the state was actively seeking the death penalty for Roy Allen Stewart. (T. 147-8). Mr. Goldstein prepared for his defense knowing that Stewart was on trial for his life and knowing that, in addition to three confessions, the state had "more physical evidence than [he] had ever seen in any case." (T. 148).

On May 8, 1979, Mr. Goldstein moved for the appointment of Thomas Sherman as his co-counsel because they worked in the same

office, and Mr. Goldstein would be with him and have control over what he was doing. (ST. 10; T. 145). Mr. Sherman had agreed beforehand to assist Mr. Goldstein in this case even though he had no experience with capital felonies. (T. 353). At the time he was appointed to help represent Roy Allen Stewart, Mr. Sherman had been an attorney for less than three years. (T. 351). He had been a clerk in federal court for fourteen months, he had represented four or five people in criminal cases, but he had never represented anyone in state court. (T. 352).

It was Mr. Sherman's primary responsibility to become thoroughly familiar with bite-mark evidence, a novel scientific issue in this case. (T. 145, 353). Lead counsel had been advised from the beginning that the state had such evidence, but at the time Mr. Sherman was appointed, the state's forensic odontologist had not yet formed an opinion as to identification, so Judge Nesbitt would not appoint a defense expert. (ST. 41; T. 147). One month later, on June 8, 1979, the trial judge appointed Dr. Lowell Levine as a defense expert in dental forensics. (ST. 61-2). Mr. Sherman stayed with Dr. Levine twenty-four hours a day for three or four days to "pick his brain" for issues. (T. 196).

On the same date that co-counsel was appointed, the court authorized funds for an investigator to assist the defense and appointed a psychiatrist to evaluate the defendant's "mental condition." (ST. 11-12; SR. 96). Dr. Sanford Jacobson's report, returned on May 16, related that the defendant was examined "to determine his competency for legal proceedings" and concluded that Stewart was competent to stand trial. (ST. 22; SR. 1145-51).

On May 22, lead counsel informed the court that Dr. Jacobson's report was inadequate for capital defense purposes:

MR. GOLDSTEIN: And, that is something else. My client is indigent. I would like to have him re-evaluated as to Doctor Jacobson, at the time of his mental condition at the time of the incident, and at least two other doctors along with Doctor Jacobson to evaluate him as to any mental difficulty or emotional conditions which may be relevant to statutory or non-statutory mitigating circumstances, which could be used irrelevant [sic] at the time of sentencing.

I need a full report on that, because the issue is going to come up as mitigating circumstances, and I have no means or funds to hire doctors to examine him.

(ST. 26-7).

Because Dr. Jacobson reported that defendant Stewart had been twice hospitalized in his home state of South Carolina for additional psychiatric reasons, the court appointed two psychiatrists, Doctors Jaslow and Corwin, to ascertain whether the defendant was competent to stand trial and whether he knew right from wrong at the time of the offense. (ST. 27-28; SR. 100). was the court's belief that the mitigating circumstance of extreme mental or emotional disturbance would be included in the issue of whether the defendant knew right from wrong at the time of the offense. (ST. 28-9). Other than an allegation in a penalty phase motion obtained from other attorneys (T. 171, 356; SR. 1086), defense counsel did not again challenge that apprehension or the sufficiency of the reports. (R. 516-17; ST. 58, 2236-7, 2456).

The report of each doctor reflects the defendant's social and behavioral difficulties, as well as his history of drug and alcohol abuse up to and including the night of the offense. (SR. 1145-62). In addition, Dr. Jacobson stated that his opinion regarding the defendant's criminal responsibility might be altered if given additional information regarding the defendant's behavior, and both Doctor Corwin and Doctor Jaslow suggested the possibility that the offenses were committed during an episodic rage reaction. (SR. 1152-3, 1157-8, 1161-2). Defense counsel did not act upon the material contained in the doctors' reports or respond to the doctors' indications of the need for further information. (R. 516).

Lead counsel's testimony at the hearing in this case disclosed various reasons for his failure to investigate even those circumstances of the defendant's background and character outlined in the evaluations, especially with regard to his client's history of drug and alcohol abuse and its relationship to his mental condition.

First, in counsel's sole pretrial action regarding the penalty phase, he limited his investigator to a search in Dade County for "as many people as [he] possibly can that can come into Court and say something good about [defendant Stewart]". (T. 151). The search was not focused on any particular mitigating circumstances; Mr. Goldstein was looking for "anything[;] anybody that could say anything during the time that [the defendant] was working as a roofer or whenever he was in Dade County or whatever. (T. 151). When the investigator was unable to report any "good things," they started working on the defense. (T. 152).

Second, counsel's major pretrial decision -- that the strategy of the defense would be to place the blame for the

offenses on the victim's neighbors -- resulted in the concentration of all defense efforts on the guilt phase. Counsel explained how his theory of defense was formulated:

When Mr. Goldstein first met his client, the defendant was firmly convinced that he was quilty; the defendant remembered that he had punched [Mrs. Haizlip] before blacking-out, and he assumed that he had killed her when he woke up and learned that she was dead. (T. 153). Sometime after this meeting, Mr. Goldstein gathered all the evidence amassed by the state, including photographs and confessions, and went through it as he would in any other case. (T. 153-4). Counsel could not remember the particular piece of evidence, but there was something in there he didn't like; he just got the idea that there had been somebody else in Mrs. Haizlip's house with Roy Allen Stewart. (T. 154). With his investigator and the box of evidence, counsel went to the jail to confront the defendant, a client who was convinced of his own quilt (T. 153-4):

* * *

[Mr. Goldstein]: I told Mr. Stewart flat out that I honestly thought he was lying to me and that I was the only one that was standing between him and that electric chair at that point and I wouldn't take anything from him -- I wouldn't take any kind of lies from him. He had to tell me the truth period and if he was trying to cover up for somebody I wanted to know who it was.

He denied it.

* * *

Notwithstanding this denial, the defense team examined the state's evidence and unearthed four inconsistencies from which counsel derived his overall trial strategy. The incongruities in

the state's evidence consisted of the following: a discrepancy between the location and condition of Mrs. Haizlip's barely discernible purse in a state's photograph and the defendant's recollection of the scene; the defendant's vehement denial that he had confessed to Vanessa Brown, a "filthy slut" of a cocaine addict who lived across the street from the victim and whose disclosure to the police led to his arrest in South Carolina; the failure of the lab technician to gather for analysis [for the presence of cocaine] numerous white Kleenex tissues strewn about Mrs. Haizlip's otherwise immaculate lawn and home; and, an inconsistency between the medical examiner's report of the location of a stricture mark and the defendant's confessed version of the strangulation. (T. 155-8).1

Based on these incongruities, Mr. Goldstein formulated his capital defense strategy:

* * *

[Mr. Goldstein]: But my theory was that if Vanessa and her boyfriend had gone into the house and the woman was laying in the bedroom and they saw the purse and were looking through the purse and the boyfriend had wandered into the kitchen and Vanessa was looking through the purse, the old lady hears them and comes and gets up and is coming into the living room and grabs the purse, and they wrestle over it, and the strap breaks, and the bodyfriend comes out of the kitchen or wherever he was, throws something across her neck from the back and pulls on it, and you will get a

As part of Mr. Goldstein's trial strategy, he sought to have the medical examiner demonstrate to the jury that if the defendant's confession was to be believed, there would have been stricture marks completely around the victim's neck. He acknowledged, "The record will reflect that we didn't get too far with that. We were cut off during the trial." (T. 158).

stricture mark from here to here.

I thought that my theory was as good as their theory, but the jury didn't think so.

* * *

(T. 159).

Mr. Goldstein explained why he was never able to substantiate his theory; unlike the immunity given to a prosecutor, he could not accuse those he suspected, and the development of his strategy was furthered hampered by his failure to locate Vanessa Brown's companion, who had disappeared. (T. 160-1).²

Under the influence of what he characterized as a possible "ego kick," Mr. Goldstein remained convinced that he could win this case, even though he was aware in advance of trial that (a) he could not establish that the murder was committed by Vanessa Brown and her boyfriend; (b) he could not call his dental expert as a witness to counter the state's bitemark evidence; c) he could not dispute the consistencies of his client's guilt with the state's evidence of blood and "a half a dozen other things"; and d) he could not prevent the admission of his client's three confessions. (T. 161-6).

Despite these pretrial setbacks in pursuit of a defense he defined as "we had a weird thing in this trial" (T. 163), Mr. Goldstein ignored the eventuality of the penalty phase and proceeded to go for the win. (T. 166). Hence, all of his efforts and all of his co-counsel's efforts were devoted to the guilt

At trial, counsel unsuccessfully attempted to have Vanessa Brown declared a witness of the court. (ST. 1757-88).

phase of trial. (T. 163).3

-

A third reason disclosed by counsel for his failure to investigate and prepare for the penalty phase was his lack of knowledge of the capital sentencing procedure. Counsel failed to realize that he might need witnesses for the penalty phase until after the jury returned its verdict, and he had no idea that sentencing proceedings would be conducted soon afterwards; the thought never occured to him. (T. 170-2).

What did occur to him was the thought that the judge "would cut [his] head off" if he asked for funds to send his investigator to the defendant's home state of South Carolina; besides, counsel did not know, nor did he seek, what could be accomplished there:

". . . I heard that he had some kind of psychiatric treatment when he was a child, that was it. That is all." (T. 167-8). Counsel did not know that his client had been ordered to undergo psychiatric evaluation there prior to pleading guilty to attempted armed robbery [the conviction for which the trial court found two aggravating circumstances. (SR. 1182-3)]. (T. 16-7, 168-9).

On the morning of sentencing, counsel met his client's family for the first time. (T. 174). According to counsel, "It got to the

This statement is consistent with the allegations counsel made in support of their motion for continuance of the penalty phase filed on the morning of sentencing (SR. 113-114A, 1113; ST. 2220-1) and with their affidavits attached to the defendant's motion for post-conviction relief. (R. 516-7, 715). The record also reflects that their investigator did no further work on this case after June 21, 1979, prior to trial; his affidavit in support of investigative fees reveals that he did not even telephone, let alone visit, any of the defendant's family or acquaintances in South Carolina. (SR. 1120-2). One long distance call was made to verify employment. (T. 380).

point where we got to the sentencing and I needed some warm bodies and I needed them." (T. 189). In the hall outside the courtroom, counsel met with "some warm bodies" for 15 to 20 minutes to determine what evidence he was going to present at the capital sentencing hearing. (T. 175-6). Inside the courtroom, counsel met with a surprise; the judge denied the defense motions for continuance of the penalty phase and for mental evaluation for purposes of sentencing filed that morning. (T.176; SR. 113-114A, 1113, 1086). Counsel explained that after he had found nothing in the doctors' reports that he could use at trial, he did not review them until the defendant was convicted and the penalty phase became a reality. (T. 170-2). He moved for additional evaluation because one of the doctors had mentioned an "EEG or something else." (T. 170-1). Counsel wanted to know if the doctors could come up with anything he could use; at that point, he was still unaware of anything useful. (T. 177).4

Counsel's unawareness of anything useful included the defendant's history of substance abuse. The following colloquy transpired regarding counsel's strategy, if any, for the penalty phase:

* * *

[Assistant State Attorney]: Let me get into some specifics.

Other than a claim that the defense needed the requested time and evaluation in order to present to the jury a reliable and individualized view of the defendant, neither of the penalty phase motions contained a proffer of any specific factors that could or would be discovered. (SR. 113-114A, 1113, 1086).

[Mr. Goldstein]: Go ahead.

Q: Things that might have been sympathies, particularly there was plenty of testimony, especially from your client, that he had been a substance abuser, that he used drugs and alcohol.

A: Yes.

Q: Did you consider suggesting to the jury that they should extend mercy because he might have been under the influence of some cocaine or methaqualone or alcohol?

A: No.

Q: Why is that?

A: Well, maybe I am wrong, I don't know, but I am pretty sure that when I went to law school, that a valid defense was involuntary intoxication, somebody held you down and poured the whiskey down your throat or injected you with something without your permission, and voluntary intoxication was not a defense.

Q: I am not talking --

A: There was at a time -- I don't know, I don't think drug users were getting too much sympathy.

[Assistant State Attorney]: I am not talking about legal defenses. I am talking about possible mitigating circumstances.

[Mr. Goldstein]: I don't think I gave it too much attention.

(T. 186-87).5

* *

⁵

According to co-counsel, the possibility of raising intoxication as a defense was discussed early in the case because "the evidence was completely overwhelming." (T. 349). He had a vague recollection of calling someone in South Carolina, as reflected in Defense Exhibits G and H, and guessed that he might have asked about the defendant's psychological evaluation because of that defense. (T. 365-6). It was not until a few weeks before trial that Mr. Goldstein came upon his theory that somebody else had been in the house after defendant Stewart. (T. 366). (Cont'd)

Counsel's defense for the penalty phase, therefore, consisted of creating some doubt of his client's guilt:

[Mr. Goldstein]: . . . What I was trying to convince the jury during the sentencing phase, was if I couldn't convince the jury in the trial that he didn't do it, then at least let me put in the idea that maybe he didn't do it, give me that, and then don't kill him because sometime in the future you may find out that somebody else did it and if we electrocute him it would be too late.

(T. 188).

This defense was based, in part, on counsel's personal belief that his client was innocent and that the state had not proven its case beyond a reasonable doubt. (T. 189). At trial, counsel felt that he could negate the state's bitemark identification testimony even though his own expert could not be called. (T. 191-2). And, although counsel "gave up" to fatigue after examining the state's expert for about half an hour on his "absurd" testimony, counsel felt that the defense had not lost anything. (T. 192). Counsel thought that he had adequately explained to the jury the rest of the physical evidence, including fingerprint, hair, and semen. (T. 192).

This defense was also based on counsel's belief that the judge had restricted his trial argument as to doubt. (T. 179-80). Counsel explained why his closing argument at the capital

Defense Exhibits G and H indicate that on June 1, 1979, Mr. Sherman had called the defendant's parole officer, who testified at the penalty phase, requesting a psychological evaluation that had been conducted during the defendant's stay in a mental institution. (T. 364-5; R. 510). The exhibits were admitted through the testimony of the parole officer's supervisor, Mr. Mixon, who has known the defendant and his family for years, but who had not been called to testify at the penalty phase. (T. 310-19, 328-31).

sentencing hearing consisted of "leftovers":

* * *

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