IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 66,005

ROY ALLEN STEWART,

FILEI S'D J. WHITE MAR 14 1985 CLERK SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy

By.

Appellant,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

AN APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA CRIMINAL DIVISION

BRIEF OF APPELLEE

JIM SMITH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

CALVIN L. FOX, ESQUIRE Assistant Attorney General 401 N.W. 2nd Avenue, Suite 820 Miami, Florida 33128

(305) 377-5441

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

The other reasons advanced were: the lawyers did not adequately prepare the few witnesses they did have available to testify at the penalty phase; they used other lawyers motions and instructions; and the closing argument was mostly that portion of the guilt phase argument not use during the guilt phase portion of the trial, basically an argument that the Defendant was not guilty beyond a reasonable doubt and a plea for compassion."

R39-R40.

Through counsel, the Defendant also requested and got a court appointed neurological examination. <u>See</u>, R719-R720A. Pursuant to that examination a court appointed Doctor, Duchowny, testified that he could find no evidence of neurological disease². <u>See</u>, R480-487.

²State's exhibit 1, from the examination of Dr. Duchowny has been omitted from the record. <u>See</u>, R482.

At the hearing below the Defendant put on twelve friends, relatives and a former teacher and former employers who testified generally to the Defendant's background. He also produced two psychologists whom had recently examined the Defendant at the request of his attorney, who said that he had organic brain damage and that he was and has been mentally ill all his life. <u>See</u>, R419-R480; R274-R310. The psychologist who had diagnosed "mental illness" admitted that he had been a "finder" of mental illness for the army. <u>See</u>, R479-R480.

The Defendant also produced Stanley Goldstein the lead attorney during his trial. <u>See</u>, R139-R140. At the time of the present trial Goldstein had been an attorney for about ten years, including practicing as a prosecutor and supervising prosecutor. <u>See</u>, R140-R141. He had represented three to five previous defendants charged with capital offenses. <u>See</u>, R142. None of the previous cases got to the penalty phase. <u>See</u>, R143.

Goldstein said that in the present cause he approached the prosecutor, but the prosecution was not going to plea bargain and wanted the death penalty. R147-R148. Goldstein said that there was, "[m]ore physical evidence than [he] had ever seen in any case, "but, "[n]othing that proved that [the Defendant] murdered her." R148. Based on conversations

with a sister about a car accident and the Defendant's relationship with his father, psychiatric exams were requested and ordered. R149. The Defendant was also given an investigator. R150-R151. The investigator could find no "good things" about the Defendant. R152.

Relative to the present appeal, Goldstein said that when he first met the Defendant, he was convinced that he had committed the crime. See, R153. The Defendant did not actually remember what happened, but rather assumed that she died because he hit her. R153. Goldstein said that based on Goldstein's examination of the evidence, Goldstein also thought that there was somebody else at the scene. See, R154. Goldstein said that he confronted the Defendant and asked if he was trying to cover-up for somebody and he denied it. R154. When the Defendant was shown a portion of the evidence the Defendant, "pointed out a couple of things which didn't make any sense." R154. In particular, the victim's purse had been moved and the strap broken. R155-R156. The Defendant vehemently denied speaking with a witness, Brown, who lived across the street from the killing with her boyfriend, Hamrick. See, T156; T160. Goldstein found out that the witness and her boyfriend were cocaine addicts. See, R157. Goldstein was aware that the crime scene was littered with kleenex, which the police had simply

thrown away³. See, R157-R158. Goldstein also said that the medical examiners description of the ligature marks on the victim's neck was more consistent with an assault by two persons with one person strangling the victim from behind rather than the rape and strangulation, which the Defendant "guessed at" in his confession. See, R157-R159. Goldstein said Brown and Hamrick "disappeared" after the killing. See, R161. Goldstein testified that one of the main issues in the case was the bite mark evidence relating to the bite marks on the victim. See, R161-R163. The defense bite mark expert unfortunately also concluded that the bite mark on the victim's thigh was consistent with a space in the Defendant's teeth, which defense counsel also had. See R163-Goldstein testified that he concluded however that he R165. still could "win" the case. See, R166.

With respect to the penalty phase, Goldstein spoke with his client and had, "a couple of conversations" with members of the Defendant's family and concluded that sending an investigator to South Carolina would not have accomplished much. <u>See</u>, R169. He was aware that the Defendant had had some prior convictions and psychiatric treatment. <u>See</u>, R168-R169. After receiving the psychiatric reports he saw nothing useful therein for trial. R170-R172. He said that

³Defense counsel was a former policeman and believed that any good lab man should have properly investigated the kleenex. <u>See</u>, R160.

he needed a week to prepare for sentencing and the trial court only gave a couple of days. See, R172-R173. Goldstein said that he met with the Defendant's family 15 to 20 minutes on the morning of the sentencing hearing. <u>See</u>, R174-R175. He also submitted a motion for further psychiatric evaluation based on the previous reports. See, R176-R177; R170.

Goldstein testified that even on the date of the present Rule 3.850 hearing he is still convinced that the Defendant did not do the murder. See, R183-R184. He said that he believed the "confession" was fed to the Defendant by the police and that the physical evidence did not fit the crime described. See, R182-R184. Goldstein suggested that he did not believe that the jury would be at all sympathetic to an admission of the present crime. See, R184-R185; R185-R186. He also said his client believed throughout the trial that he would not get the death because of his co-operation with the police. See, R185. He also was of the opinion that any drug abuse problems his client may have had before or during the crime would not have produced any sympathy from the jury. See, R186-R187. Goldstein said that he also did not think that any childhood problems the Defendant may have had would be at all persuasive with the jury in this case. See, R187-R188. With respect to witnesses in mitigation, from South Carolina, Goldstein said that he was lead

to believe that their attendance was prevented by financial constraints. <u>See</u>, R189-R190. Based upon all of the foregoing, Goldstein described his basic tactical approach at the sentencing phase thus:

> "What I was trying to convince the jury during the sentencing phase, was if I couldn't convince the jury in the trial that he didn't do it, then at least let me put in the idea that maybe he didn't do it, give me that, and then don't kill him because sometime in the future you may find out that somebody else did it and if we electrocute him it would be too late.

[By the Prosecutor]:

Q: So, would it be fair to say that you thought if you could try to convince the jury if there was just a scintilla of a thought--

A: That is all I wanted, a little doubt. That at some time maybe something would happen and they would come in and show that he didn't do it and you got him here and let him loose.

Q: You felt that the State's case was not proved beyond a reasonable doubt?

A: Right.

Q: Is that the truth?

A: Right.

Q: Do you still feel that way today?

A: Right."

R188-R189.

Defense counsel said with respect to the State's bite mark expert, that in his judgment everyone in the courtroom felt that evidence was absurd. <u>See</u>, R191-R192. Goldstein indicated that in his judgment the hair, saliva and semen evidence was adequately "explained". See, R192.

The Defendant's witness, Raben, a former colleague of the Defendant's present counsel, and who had never conducted a death penalty hearing, testified at length to what a terrible job he felt Goldstein had done. See, R196-R236.

Based upon the foregoing, the trial court summarized the evidence presented thus:

"At the hearing before this Court, Defendant presented testimony of a lawyer who stated his opinion regarding the ways that Defendant's trial counsel fell below the acceptable standards. He claimed among other things: that counsel who tries the guilt phase and relies on a denial defense cannot present the penalty phase because his credibility has been lost; that counsel had not presented any evidence assisting the Defendant and some was harmful; and that the argument about reasonable doubt was wrong. Without detailing the testimony, the lawyer agreed with trial counsels' contention that he was unprepared for the penalty phase. The main deficiency pointed to was the failure to obtain evidence of Stewarts' mental impairment, which the Defendant contends was suggested in the reports of the court appointed doctors.

Other witnesses at the hearing before this Court testified about the Defendant's childhood, relationship with his father, the effect upon him of his father's death, his work habits, his prior parole activity, his use of drugs and alcohol and his mental status. Two of the witnesses are psychologists.

The psychologist conferred with the Defendant, administered batteries of tests to him, reviewed his prior records. They expressed their opinion that the Defendant was mentally ill; Dr. Marguit concluded that the Defendant was not only mentally ill at the time he murdered Ms. Haizlip, but throughout his life. The Defendant was also subjected to a number of tests at Jackson Memorial Hospital. Those tests did not disclose any evidence of neurological disease."

R894.-R895.

Consistent with the analysis in <u>Strickland v. Washington</u>, _____ U.S.___, 104 S.Ct. 2052 (1984) the trial court concluded that even if counsel had been ineffective the Defendant could not establish the requisite prejudice:

> "At an early stage of the representation, defense counsel should have come to the inescapable conclusion that all hope of obtaining a verdict of not guilty should hav been abandoned and substantial time should have been expended preparing for the penalty phase.

The question, however, is: was the failure to do so prejudice as defined in <u>Strickland</u>? Assuming that counsel would have presented

the evidence and made the arguments that were made in support of the Motion, is there a reasonable probability that the outcome would have been different. Would the sentencer, giving due consideration the evidence and arguments presented at the hearing upon the Motions, have concluded that the sentence warranted was life imprisonment rather than death.

The aggravating circumstance found by the sentencing judge were undoubtedly considered by the sentencer to be of varying importance. However, it is not reasonably probable that the sentencer would have concluded that the totality of the evidence was such as to outweigh two of the aggravating circumstances: the fact that the crime was committed during the commission of a sexual battery and the way the killing was done.

This Court has determined that regardless of the conduct of the Defendant's counsel there is no reasonable probability that the sentence would have been different evenl if what was presented to this Court had been presented during the penalty phase of the Defendant's trial."

R896-R897.

After some delay, the Defendant has pursued the present appeal from the foregoing order denying his Rule 3.850 Motion.

POINT ON APPEAL

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT HAS ERRED IN DENYING THE DEFENDANT'S MOTION PURSUANT TO RULE 3.850?

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

î. . .

III

1) Counsel's conduct did not so undermine the proper functioning of the adversarial process such that the penalty phase proceedings herein cannot be relied upon as having produced a just result.

2) Even assuming <u>arguendo</u>, that counsel's alleged errors rose to the proper level of constitutional error there is no probability that the sentencing result would have been different in this case.

ARGUMENT

III

THE TRIAL COURT HAS NOT ERRED IN DENYING THE DEFENDANT'S MOTION PURSUANT TO RULE 3.850.

The Defendant rambles on for sixty pages in his brief claiming essentially that defense counsel was ineffective only at the sentencing phase of the present trial in that his selection of tactics was unreasonable and that the outcome of the result below was reasonably affected. As an afterthought the Defendant then argues that the representation of his attorney was so bad that it was tantamount to no counsel at all and therefore no showing of prejudice is required. Essentially the Defendant attempts to assassinate his counsels efforts without properly analyzing or presenting what trial counsel did or considered.

The standard for review of ineffective assistance of counsel claims is contained in <u>Strickland v. Washington</u>, _____ U.S.___, 104 SCt. 2052 (1984). In <u>Strickland</u>, the court delineated a two-part test for claims of ineffective assistance of counsel. First of all, the court determined that a defendant must make a showing that his counsel's conduct was so far removed from the norm that:

> "[C]ounsel's conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the

adversarial process that the trial cannot be relied on as having produced a just result."

104 S.Ct. at 2064.

<u>See</u>, <u>also</u>, <u>Knight</u> <u>v. State</u>, 394 So.2d 997 (Fla. 1981), <u>affirmed sub nom</u>, <u>Strickland</u> <u>v. Washington</u>, <u>supra</u>. Secondly, a defendant must show that even with his counsel's deficient conduct that there was a "reasonable" probability that the outcome was affected by counsel's deficient conduct:

> "Defendant must show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different. A reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine the confidence in the outcome."

> > Id. at 2068.

<u>Accord, Knight v. State, supra</u>. Decisions as to which witnesses to present; what evidence is worthwhile and what arguments to make, are proper tactical choices within the standard of expected competency of counsel. <u>See, Middleton</u> <u>v. State</u>, Case Nos. 66,629 and 66,652 (Fla. March 4, 1985); <u>Tafero v. State</u>, 459 So.2d 1034 (Fla. 1984); <u>Magill v.</u> <u>State</u>, 457 So.2d 1367 (Fla. 1984); <u>Funchess v. State</u>, 449 So.2d 1283 (Fla. 1984); <u>Straight v. Wainwright</u>, 422 So.2d 827 (Fla. 1982). Where there is any reasonable basis for counsel's tactical decisions they will not support a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. <u>See</u>, <u>Id.</u> The claim that counsel failed to interview childhood relatives and friends will not support a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel in the face of a tactical decision by counsel to proceed otherwise. <u>See</u>, <u>Strickland v. Washington; Magill v.</u> <u>State</u>, <u>supra</u>; <u>see also</u>, <u>Stephens v. Kemp</u>, 721 F.2d 1300, at 1304 (11th Cir. 1983); <u>Stanley v. Zant</u>, 697 F.2d 955 (11th Cir. 1983). In the present case, there is not the remotest possibility that the Defendant can show either requirement of Strickland, consistent with the foregoing authority.

The Defendant's position as stated by his present counsel is recited at page 34 of his brief:

> "If counsel, here, had made a realistic assessment of this case, he would have known that a finding of guilt was inevitable. That inevitability, however, is never the case at a sentencing hearing. At that stage, there is no set of facts and no set of legal principles that require a juror to vote for the death penalty. Given the vast spectrum of individual feelings about the appropriateness of the death penalty, given the basis humanity of the defendant no matter how heinous the crime, and given the availability of facts establishing mitigating circumstances and contesting aggravating circumstances that a reasonable investigation would have uncovered, there was in this case a rational basis for the jury to advise and the trial judge to impose a sentence of life imprisonment." [Emphasis added].

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